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 Title 5. EDUCATION
Division 1. California Department of Education
Chapter 3. Individuals with Exceptional Needs
Subchapter 1. Special Education
Article 7. Procedural Safeguards
§ 3080. General Provisions.	
	(a) Sections 4600 through 4671 3200 through 3204 apply to the filing of a complaint, in accordance with provisions of Title 34, Code of Federal Regulations (34 C.F.R.), Ssections 300.150, 300.151, 300.152 and 300.153, regarding a public agency's alleged violation of federal or state law or regulation relating to the provision of a free appropriate public education.
	(b) Section 3082 applies to due process hearing procedures which for the resolution of disagreements between a parent and a public agency regarding the proposal, or refusal of a public agency to initiate or change the identification, assessment, or educational placement of the pupil or the provision of a free appropriate public education to the pupil.
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 33315 and 56100, Education Code. Reference: Sections 56500.1 and 56500.2, Education Code.

Article 9. Filing of a Complaint
§ 3200. Definitions.
As used in this chapter, the term:
	(a) “CDE” or “Department” means the California Department of Education.
	(b) “Complainant” means any individual, including a person's duly authorized representative or an interested third party, public agency, or organization who files a written complaint alleging a violation of any of the provisions within the scope of section 3201.
	(c) “Complaint” means a written and signed statement alleging a violation of any of the provisions within the scope of section 3201. If the complainant is unable to put the complaint in writing, due to conditions such as a disability or illiteracy, the CDE shall assist the complainant in the filing of the complaint. 
	(d) “Complaint investigation” means an administrative process used by the CDE for the purpose of addressing a special education complaint.
	(e) “Complaint procedure” means an internal process used by the CDE to process and resolve complaints.
	(f) “Days” means calendar days unless designated otherwise.
	(g) “IDEA” means the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act as set forth in title 20 United States Code section 1400 et seq.
	(h) “Local agency” means a school district governing board or a local public or private agency which receives direct or indirect funding or any other financial assistance from the state to provide any school programs or activities or special education or related services. “Local agency” includes a Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA). 
	(i) “Local educational agency” (LEA) means any public school district or county office of education or charter school that participates in a Special Education Local Plan Area as its own LEA.
 	(j) “Party” means any person or organization filing a state complaint pursuant to section 3202, and any LEA or other public entity that is expressly identified as the subject of the complaint filed.
	(k) “Public agency” means any local agency or state agency.
	(l) “SELPA” means Special Education Local Plan Area. 
	(m) “SSPI” means the State Superintendent of Public Instruction or his or her designee.
	(n) “State agency” means the State Departments of State Hospitals or Health Care Services or any other state administrative unit that is or may be required to provide special education or related services to children with disabilities pursuant to Government Code section 7570 et seq.
NOTE:  Authority cited: Sections 33315 and 56500.2, Education Code; and 34 C.F.R. Sections 300.151-300.153. Reference: Sections 33315 and 56500.2, Education Code; and 34 C.F.R. Sections 300.151-300.153.
 
§ 3201. Scope.
This article applies to complaints that allege that an LEA or, as applicable, other public agency, violated any of the following provisions: 
	(a) Part B of the IDEA, and federal regulations implementing Part B; or
	(b) Part 30 of the Education Code, and this subchapter.
	(c) Additionally, this article applies to those complaints in which:
	(1) The complainant alleges that an LEA or other public agency has violated the terms of a settlement agreement relating to the provision of a free, appropriate public education. An allegation relating to an attorney fees provision in a settlement agreement is expressly excluded from the article. 
	(2) The complainant alleges that the LEA or other public agency has failed or refused to implement a due process hearing order to which that LEA or other public agency is subject.
	(3) The complainant alleges that a public agency, other than an LEA, as specified in Government Code section 7570 et seq., fails or refuses to comply with a law or regulation applicable to that public agency as it pertains or relates to the provision of a  free appropriate public education to individuals with disabilities. 
	(4) The complainant alleges facts that indicate that physical safety concerns interfere with the provision of a free appropriate public education.
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 33315 and 56500.2, Education Code; and 34 CFR Sections 300.151-300.153. Reference: Sections 33315 and 56500.2, Education Code; and 34 C.F.R. Sections 300.151-300.153.
 
§ 3202. Filing a State Complaint.
	(a) In accordance with 34 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) section 300.153, an organization or individual may file a signed written complaint with the CDE under the procedures described in 34 CFR sections 300.151-152. 
	(b) The complaint filed pursuant to subdivision (a) must include:
	(1) A statement that an LEA or other public agency has violated or failed to comply with any provision set forth in section 3201.
	(2) The facts on which the statement is based;
	(3) The signature and contact information for the complainant; and
	(4) If alleging violations with respect to a specific child:
	(A) The name and address of the residence of the child;
	(B) The name of the school the child is attending;
	(C) In the case of a homeless child or youth (within the meaning of section 725(2) of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. § 11434a(2)), available contact information for the child, and the name of the school the child is attending;
	(D) A description of the nature of the problem of the child, including facts relating to the problem; and
	(E) A proposed resolution of the problem to the extent known and available to the party at the time the complaint is filed.
	(c) The complaint must allege a violation that occurred not more than one year prior to the date that the complaint is received in accordance with 34 CFR section 300.151.
	(d) The party filing the complaint must forward a copy of the complaint to the LEA or public agency serving the child at the same time the party files the complaint with the CDE.
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 33315 and 56500.2, Education Code; and 34 C.F.R. Sections 300.151-300.153. Reference: Sections 33315 and 56500.2, Education Code; and 34 C.F.R. Sections 300.151-300.153.
 
§ 3203. State Complaint Procedures, Investigations, and Reports. 
	(a) State complaint procedures, investigations, and reports include those provisions set forth in title 34 CFR sections 300.151 through 300.153.
	(b) Refusal by the complainant to provide the investigator with documents or other evidence related to the allegations in the complaint, or to otherwise fail or refuse to cooperate in the investigation or engage in any other obstruction of the investigation may result in the dismissal of the complaint because of a lack of evidence to support the allegations.
	(c) Refusal by the LEA or other public agency to provide the investigator with access to records and/or other information related to the allegation in the complaint, or to otherwise fail or refuse to cooperate in the investigation or engage in any other obstruction of the investigation may result in a finding based on evidence collected that a violation has occurred and may result in the imposition of a remedy in favor of the complainant.
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 33315 and 56500.2, Education Code; and 34 C.F.R. Sections 300.151-300.153. Reference: Sections 33315 and 56500.2, Education Code; and 34 C.F.R. Sections 300.151-300.153.
 
§ 3204.  Reconsideration of CDE Investigation Report.
(a) Within 30 days of the date of the CDE Investigation Report, either party 
may request reconsideration by the SSPI or his or her designee. The request for reconsideration shall specify and explain why:
(1) Relative to the allegation(s) of the complaint, the CDE Investigation Report lacks 
material findings of fact necessary to reach a conclusion of law; and/or
(2) The material findings of fact in the CDE Investigation Report are not 
supported by substantial evidence; and/or
(3) The legal conclusion in the CDE Investigation Report is inconsistent with 
the law; and/or
(4) In a case in which the CDE found noncompliance, the required corrective 
actions fail to provide a proper remedy.  
(b) In evaluating or deciding on a request for reconsideration, the CDE will not 
consider any information not previously submitted to the CDE by a party during the investigation unless such information was unknown to the party at the time of the investigation and, with due diligence, could not have become known to the party. 
(c) Subsection (b) does not prohibit the CDE itself from seeking and obtaining 
information from any source necessary to issue an accurate CDE Investigation Report.
(d) This section does not prohibit the CDE itself from making any corrections to an 
Investigation Report necessary to ensure factual and legal accuracy.  
(e) Within 60 days of the receipt of the request for reconsideration, the CDE shall 
respond in writing to the parties. Such response may include a denial of the request for reconsideration, or modifications to the investigative report necessary to ensure factual and legal accuracy. Pending the CDE’s response to a request for reconsideration, any corrective actions set forth in the report remain in effect and enforceable, unless stayed by a court.
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 33315 and 56500.2, Education Code; and 34 C.F.R. Sections 300.151-300.153. Reference: Sections 33315 and 56500.2, Education Code; and 34 C.F.R. Sections 300.151-300.153.
 
§ 3205. Enforcement.
(a) If a local or state agency fails to take required corrective action, the Department 
may use any means authorized by law to effect compliance, including, but not limited to:
(1) Withholding of all or part of the local agency’s special education fiscal support in 
accordance with state or federal stature or regulation, including but not limited to section 1413 of title 20 of the United States Code, Education Code section 56845, and section 3088.1 of title 5 of the California Code of Regulations;
(2) Conditioning a local agency’s eligibility for a local future state or federal support 
on compliance with specified conditions; or 
(3) Proceeding in a court of competent jurisdiction against a local or state agency 
for an appropriate order compelling compliance.
(b) No decision to curtail funding to a local agency under this chapter shall be made 
until the Department has determined that compliance cannot be secured by other means.
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 33315, 56500.2, and 56845, Education Code; 20 U.S.C. Section 1413; and 34 C.F.R. Sections 300.151-153. Reference: Section 33315 and 56500.2, Education Code; and 34 C.F.R. Sections 300.151-153.

Chapter 5.1. Uniform Complaint Procedures
Subchapter 1. Complaint Procedures
Article 1. Definitions
§ 4600. General Definitions.
As used in this chapter, the term:
(a) “Appeal” means a written request by the complainant to the CDE seekiing review of an LEA Investigation Report that was issued in response to a properly-filed complaint. made in writing to a level higher than the original reviewing level by an aggrieved party requesting reconsideration or a reinvestigation of the lower adjudicating body's decision.
	(b) “Beginning of the year or semester” means the time period from the first day pupils attend classes for a year-long course or semester-long course though not later than 20 business days afterwards. necessary to serve all the students enrolled are established with a single designated certificated employee assigned for the duration of the class, but not later than 20 working days after the first day students attend classes for that semester.
	(c) “CDE” or “Department” means the California Department of Education.
	(d) “Complainant” means any individual, including a person's duly authorized representative or an interested third party, public agency, or organization who files a written complaint alleging violation of federal or state laws or regulations, including allegations of unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying in programs and activities funded directly by the state or receiving any financial assistance from the state.
	(e) “Complaint” means a written and signed statement alleging a violation of federal or state laws or regulations, which may include an allegation of unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying. Notwithstanding section 4600(d), a complaint filed on behalf of an individual student may only be filed by that student or his or her duly authorized representative. If the complainant is unable to put the complaint in writing, due to conditions such as a disability or illiteracy, the public local agency shall assist the complainant in the filing of the complaint.
	(f) “Complaint investigation” means an administrative process used by the California Department of Education (CDE) or local educational agency (LEA) for the purpose of gathering data regarding the complaint.
	(g) “Complaint procedure” means an internal process used by the CDE or LEA to process and resolve complaints.
	(h) “Days” means calendar days unless designated otherwise.
	(i) “Direct state intervention” means the steps taken by the CDE to initially investigate complaints or effect compliance.
	(j) “Educational activity” shall have the same definition as found in Education Code section 49010(a).
	(k) “Educational institution” means a public or private preschool, elementary, or secondary school or institution, the governing board of a school district, or any combination of school districts or counties recognized as the administrative agency for public elementary or secondary schools.
	(lk) “Facilities that pose an emergency or urgent threat to the health or safety of pupils or staff” means a condition as defined in Education Code section 17592.72(c)(1) and any other emergency conditions the school district determines appropriate.
	(ml) “Good repair” shall have the same definition as that found in Education Code section 17002(d).
	(nm) “Instructional materials” means all materials that are designed for use by pupils and their teachers as a learning resource and help pupils to acquire facts, skills, or opinions or to develop cognitive processes. Instructional materials may be printed or nonprinted, and may include textbooks, technology-based materials, other educational materials, and tests.
	(n) “Investigation report includes an LEA investigation report issued pursuant to section 4631(e), an LEA amended investigation report issued pursuant to section 4632(f), and a Department investigation report issued pursuant to section 4664.
	(o) “Local agency” means a school district governing board or a local public or private agency which receives direct or indirect funding or any other financial assistance from the sState to provide any school programs or activities or special education or related services. 
	(p) “Local educational agency” (LEA)” includesmeans any public school district and county office of education or direct-funded charter school, as applicable, unless otherwise stated in law.
	(q) “Mediation” means a local problem solving activity whereby a third party assists the parties to the dispute in resolving the complaint.
	(r) “Misassignment” means the placement of a certificated employee in a teaching or services position for which the employee does not hold a legally recognized certificate or credential or the placement of a certificated employee in a teaching or services position that the employee is not otherwise authorized by statute to hold.
	(s) “Public agency” means any local agency or state agency.
	(ts) “Pupil fee” shall have the same definition as found in Education Code section 49010(b).
	(ut) “Reasonable efforts” means a public school's good faith attempts to identify and fully reimburse all pupils, parents and guardians who paid a pupil fee within one year prior to the filing of the complaint.
	(1) Reasonable efforts to identify pupils who paid a pupil fee include but are not limited to researching existing school records, contacting pupils who were enrolled in or participating in the educational activity during the time the pupil fee was charged, and considering submissions of proof of payment of the pupil fee.
	(2) Reasonable efforts to fully reimburse all pupils, parents and guardians who paid a pupil fee include but are not limited to crediting the pupil's school financial account and sending reimbursement by first class mail to the pupil's last known primary address as contained in school or local educational agencyLEA records. If the school has knowledge that a pupil's last known address as contained in school or local educational agencyLEA records is no longer valid, the school may attempt to obtain a more recent address from any notices returned to the school or local educational agency by the United States Postal Service.
	(vu) “SSPI” or “Superintendent” means the State Superintendent of Public Instruction or his or her designee.
	(w) “State agency” means the State Departments State Hospitals or Health Services or any other state administrative unit that is or may be required to provide special education or related services to children with disabilities pursuant to Government Code section 7570 et seq.
	(x) “State mediation agreement” means a written, voluntary agreement approved by the CDE, which is developed by the parties to the dispute, which resolves the allegations of the complaint.
	(yv) “Subject matter competency” means the teacher meets the applicable requirements of Cchapter 6, article 1, subchapter 7 of these regulations, commencing with section 6100, for the course being taught.
	(zw) “Sufficient textbooks or instructional materials” means that each pupil, including English learners, has a textbook or instructional materials, or both, to use in class and to take home but does not require two sets of textbooks or instructional materials for each pupil. Sufficient textbooks or instructional materials does not include photocopied sheets from only a portion of a textbook or instructional materials copied to address a shortage.
	(aax) “Teacher vacancy” means a position to which a single designated certificated employee has not been assigned at the beginning of the year for an entire year or, if the position is for a one-semester course, a position of which a single designated certificated employee has not been assigned at the beginning of a semester for an entire semester.
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 221.1, and 33031 and 33315, Education Code; and Section 11138, Government Code. Reference: Sections 200, 201, 210.1, 220, 234.1, 17002(d), 17592.72, 33126(b)(5)(A), 33126(b)(5)(B), 49010, 49013 and 60010, Education Code; and Sections 11135 and 11138, Government Code.

Article 2. Purpose and Scope
§ 4610. Purpose and Scope.
	(a) This Cchapter applies to the filing, investigation and resolution of a complaint regarding an alleged violation by a local agency of federal or state law or regulations governing educational programs and other specified subject matter., including allegations of unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying. The purpose of this chapter is to establish a uniform system of complaint processing for specified programs or activities that receive state or federal funding.
	(b) The Uniform Complaint Procedures in Tthis chapter applies shall apply to complaints relating to all of the matters addressed in Education Code section 33315(a)(1) and any other matters identified by the Legislature. the following programs administered by the CDE:
	(1) Adult Education programs established pursuant to Education Code sections 8500 through 8538 and 52500 through 52616;
	(2) Consolidated Categorical Aid Programs as listed in Education Code section 64000(a);
	(3) Migrant Education established pursuant to Education Code sections 54440 through 54445;
	(4) Career Technical and Technical Education and Career Technical and Technical Training Programs established pursuant to Education Code sections 52300 through 52480;
	(5) Child Care and Development Programs established pursuant to Education Code sections 8200 through 8493.;
	(6) Child Nutrition Programs established pursuant to Education Code sections 49490 through 49570; and
	(7) Special Education Programs established pursuant to Education Code sections 56000 through 56885 and 59000 through 59300.
	(c) This chapter also applies to the filing of complaints which allege unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying against any protected group as identified under Education Code sections 200 and 220 and Government Code section 11135, including any actual or perceived characteristic as set forth in Penal Code section 422.55, or on the basis of a person's association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics, in any program or activity conducted by a local agency, which is funded directly by, or that receives or benefits from any state financial assistance.
	(c)  These procedures do not apply to complaints regarding child nutrition programs established pursuant to Education Code sections 49490 to 49590, inclusive. 
	(1) The federal provisions governing complaints relative to child nutrition programs are 34 Code of Federal Regulations sections 210.19(a)(4), 215.1(a), 220.13(c), 225.11(b), 226.6(n), and 250.15(d).
	(2) Other provisions governing complaints relative to child nutrition programs are found in section 15580 et seq. of this title. 
	(d)  These procedures do not apply to complaints regarding special education programs established pursuant to Education Code sections 56000 to 56865, and 59000 to 59300, inclusive.
	(1)  The federal provisions governing complaints relative to special education programs are 34 Code of Federal Regulations sections 300.151 through 300.153. 
	(2)  Other provisions governing complaints relative to special education are found in section 3080 et seq. of this title.
	(d) This chapter also applies to the filing of complaints which allege noncompliance with the provisions of Education Code sections 49010 and 49011 regarding pupil fees.
	(e) Nothing in these regulations shall prevent an LEA from using its local uniform complaint procedure to address complaints not listed in this section. LEA Investigation Reports on complaints not listed in this section may not be appealed to the CDE. 
	(f) These procedures do not apply to complaints regarding instructional materials, emergency or urgent facilities conditions that pose a threat to the health or safety of pupils or staff, and teacher vacancies and misassignments, except as otherwise indicated. Such complaints are addressed in and governed by sections 4680 through 4687. LEA Investigation Reports on facilities complaints may be appealed to the CDE pursuant to section 4687. 
	(g) These procedures do not apply to complaints regarding state preschool health and safety issues in LEAs exempt from licensing, except as otherwise indicated. Such complaints are addressed in and governed by sections 4690 through 4694. LEA Investigation Reports on state preschool health and safety issues in LEAs exempt from licensing may be appealed to the CDE pursuant to section 4694 
	(fh) The CDE will develop a pamphlet for parents that will make available to the public, on the CDE’s website, information that explains the Uniform Complaint Procedures in a user friendly manner. and post this pamphlet on the CDE's Web site.
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 221.1, 222, 8235.5, 8261, 32289, 33031, 33315, 46015, 48645.7, 48853, 48853.5, 49069.5, 49531, 49551, 51223, 51225.1, 51225.2, 51228.3, 52075, 54445, 52355, 52451, 56100(a) and 56100(j), Education Code; and Section 11138, Government Code. Reference: Sections 200, 220, 234.1, 260, 8235.5, 33315, 35186, 49013 and 49556, Education Code; Sections 11135 and 11138, Government Code; and 34 C.F.R. Sections 106.1-106.8 and 299.10-299.11.

§ 4611. Referring Complaint Issues to Other Appropriate State or Federal Agencies.
The following complaints shall be referred to the specified agencies for appropriate resolution and are not subject to the local and CDE complaint procedures set forth in this chapter unless these procedures are made applicable by separate interagency agreements:
	(a) Allegations of child abuse shall be referred to the applicable County Department of Social Services (DSS), Protective Services Division or appropriate law enforcement agency. However, nothing in this section relieves the CDE from investigating complaints pursuant to section 4650(a)(8)(C) herein.
	(b) Health and safety complaints regarding licensed facilities operating a Child Development Program shall be referred to Department of Social Services for licensed facilities, and to the appropriate Child Development regional administrator for licensing-exempt facilities.
	(c) Employment discrimination complaints shall be sent to the State Department of Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH) pursuant to title 22, CCR, section 98410. The complainant shall be notified by first class mail of any DFEH transferral.
	(d) Allegations of fraud shall be referred to the responsible CDE Division Director who may consult with the CDE's Legal, Audits, and Compliance Branch.
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 221.1, and 33031, and 33315, Education Code; and Section 11138, Government Code. Reference: Sections 200, 220 and 48987, Education Code; Sections 11135, 11136, 11138 and 12960, Government Code; Section 11166, Penal Code; and 34 C.F.R. Sections 106.1-106.8.

Article 3. Local Educational Agency (LEA) Compliance
§ 4620. LEA Responsibilities.
Each LEA shall have the primary responsibility to insureensure compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations. Each LEA shall investigate complaints alleging failure to comply with applicable state and federal laws and regulations and/or alleging discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying and seek to resolve those complaints in accordance with the procedures set out in this chapter and in accordance with the policies and procedures of the governing board or authorized designee.
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 221.1, and 33031, 33315, and 35161, Education Code; and Section 11138, Government Code. Reference: Section 200, 220, 234.1 and 260, Education Code; Section 11135, Government Code; and 34 C.F.R. Section 106.8.

§ 4621. District Policies and Procedures.
	(a) Each LEA shall adopt policies and procedures not inconsistent with sections 4600-through 4695 of this chapter for the investigation and resolution of complaints. Local policies shall ensure that complainants are protected from retaliation and that the identity of a complainant alleging discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying remain confidential as appropriate. School Ddistricts, and County Offices of Education, and direct-funded charter schools shall submit their policies and procedures to the local governing board or authorized designee for adoption.
	(b) Each LEA shall include in its policies and procedures the person(s), employee(s) or agency position(s) or unit(s) responsible for receiving complaints, investigating complaints and ensuring LEA compliance. The LEA's policies shall ensure that the person(s), employee(s), position(s) or unit(s) responsible for compliance and/or investigations shall be knowledgeable about the laws/programs that he/she is assigned to investigate.
	(c) Except for complaints under sections 4680-4687 regarding instructional materials, emergency or urgent facilities conditions that pose a threat to the health or safety of pupils or staff, and teacher vacancies or misassignments, tThe LEA may provide a complaint form for persons wishing to file a complaint to fill out and file. A complaint form shall be provided for complaints regarding instructional materials, emergency or urgent facilities conditions that pose a threat to the health or safety of pupils or staff, and teacher vacancies or misassignments. However, a person is not required to use the complaint form furnished by the LEA in order to file a complaint.
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 221.1, and 33031, 33315, and 35161, Education Code; and Section 11138, Government Code. Reference: Sections 200, 220, 234.1 and 260, Education Code; Section 11135, Government Code; and 34 C.F.R. Sections 106.8 and 299.10-299.11.

§ 4622. Notice.
(a) Each LEA shall annually notify in writing, as applicable, its students, employees, 
parents or guardians of its students, the district advisory committees, school advisory committees, appropriate private school officials or representatives, and other interested parties of its LEA complaint procedures, including the opportunity to appeal to the CDE and the provisions of this chapter. The notice shall explain the LEA’s complaint process in a user-friendly manner. The notice may also be made available on the LEA’s website subsequent to written distribution. 
(b) The notice shall:
(1) iInclude the identity (identities) of the person(s) responsible for processing 
complaints.; 
(2) Advise of the opportunity to appeal the LEA Investigation Report to the CDE, 
except when the LEA has used its local uniform complaint procedures to address a complaint not listed in section 4610(b);
(3) The notice shall also aAdvise the recipient of any civil law remedies that 
may also be available under state or federal discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying laws, if applicable, and of the appeal pursuant to Education Code section 262.3.;
(4) Include the information required by Education Code section 33315(a)(7); and
(5) The notice shall also include information regarding the requirements of 
Education Code sections 49010 through 49013 relating to pupil fees. 
(c) ThisThe notice shall be in English, and when necessary, in the primary 
language, pursuant to Education Code section 48985, or mode of communication of the recipient of the notice. 
(d) Copies of LEA complaint procedures shall be available free of charge.
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 200, 220, 221.1, 262.3, 33031, 33315 and 49013, Education Code; and Section 11138, Government Code. Reference: Sections 200, 220, and 234.1, Education Code; Sections 11135 and 11138, Government Code; and 34 C.F.R. Sections 106.8 and 299.11.

Article 4. Local Complaint Procedures
§ 4630. Filing a Local Complaint; Procedures, Time Lines.
	(a) Except for complaints under sections 4680-4687 regarding instructional materials, emergency or urgent facilities conditions that pose a threat to the health or safety of pupils or staff, and teacher vacancies or misassignments, and complaints that allege discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying and complaints regarding pupil fees, any individual, public agency or organization may file a written complaint with the district superintendent or his or her designee alleging a matter which, if true, would constitute a violation by that LEA of federal or state law or regulation governing a program Each LEA must have a procedure for the filing of complaints related to a matter listed in section 4610(b) of this chapter.
	(b) The procedure adopted pursuant to subsection (a) must include a process for receiving and documenting the receipt of complaints filed pursuant to this chapter.
	(c) Complaints shall be filed not later than one year from the date the alleged violation occurred, except as stated in subdivision (d) below. 
	(bd) An investigation of alleged unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying shall be initiated by filing a complaint not later than six months from the date the alleged discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying occurred, or the date the complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying unless the time for filing is extended by the district superintendent or his or her designee, upon written request by the complainant setting forth the reasons for the extension. Such extension by the district superintendent or his or her designee shall be made in writing. The period for filing may be extended by the district superintendent or his or her designee for good cause for a period not to exceed 90 days following the expiration of the six month time period. The district superintendent shall respond immediately upon a receipt of a request for extension.
	(1e) The complaint shall be filed A complaint of alleged unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying shall be filed by one who alleges that he or she has personally suffered unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying, or by one who believes an individual or any specific class of individuals has been subjected to discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying prohibited by this part, or by a duly authorized representative who alleges that an individual student has been subjected to discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying.
	(21) The complaint shall be filed with the LEA in accordance with the complaint procedures of the LEA.
	(32) An investigation of a discrimination, harassment, intimidation or bullying complaint shall be conducted in a manner that protects confidentiality of the parties and maintains the integrity of the process.
	(cf)(1) Pupil fee complaints may be filed with the principal of the school.
	(2) Pupil fee complaints shall be filed not later than one year from the date the alleged violation occurred.
	(3g) Pupil fee complaints and complaints regarding local control and accountability plans only, may be filed anonymously if the complaint provides evidence or information leading to evidence to support an allegation of noncompliance with Education Code sections 49010 and 49011 regarding pupil fees or an allegation of noncompliance with Education Code sections 52060 through 52077, including an allegation of a violation of Education Code sections 47606.5 or 47607.3, as referenced in Education Code section 52075, regarding local control and accountability plans.
Note: Authority cited: Sections 221.1, and 33031 and 33315, Education Code; and Section 11138, Government Code. Reference: Sections 200, 220, 234.1, and 49013 and 52075, Education Code; Sections 11135, 11136 and 11138, Government Code; and 34 C.F.R. Section 106.8.

§ 4631. Responsibilities of the LEA.
	(a) Except for complaints regarding instructional materials, emergency or urgent facilities conditions that pose a threat to the health or safety of pupils or staff, and teacher vacancies or misassignments, which must be processed in accordance with sections 4680-4687, within 60 days from the date of the Upon receipt of the a complaint, the LEA person responsible for the investigation of the complaints or his or her designee shall conduct and complete an investigation of the complaint in accordance with the local procedures adopted pursuant to section 4621 and prepare a written LEA DecisionInvestigation Report. This time period may be extended by with the written agreement of the complainant.
	(b) The investigation shall include an opportunity for the complainant, or the complainant's representative, or both, to present the complaint(s) and evidence or information leading to evidence to support the allegations of non-compliance with state and federal laws and/or regulations.
	(c) Refusal by the complainant to provide the investigator with documents or other evidence related to the allegations in the complaint, or to otherwise fail or refuse to cooperate in the investigation or engage in any other obstruction of the investigation, may result in the dismissal of the complaint because of a lack of evidence to support the allegations.
	(d) Refusal by the LEA to provide the investigator with access to records and/or other information related to the allegation in the complaint, or to otherwise fail or refuse to cooperate in the investigation or engage in any other obstruction of the investigation, may result in a finding based on evidence collected that a violation has occurred and may result in the imposition of a remedy in favor of the complainant.
	(e) The LEA shouldshall issue an LEA Investigation Report Decision (the Decision) based on the evidence. The LEA Investigation Report Decision shall be in writing and sent to the complainant within 60 days from receipt of the complaint by the LEA, subject to any extension under subsection (a) above. The LEA Investigation Report shall include  Decision should contain:
	(1) the findings of fact based on the evidence gathered,;
	(2) conclusion providing a clear determination as to each allegation as to whether the LEA is in compliance with the relevant lawof law,; and 
	(3) disposition of the complaint,
	(4) the rationale for such disposition,
	(53) if the LEA finds merit in the complaint, corrective actions including in the case of complaints related to subsections (a)(1)(I), (J), (K) and (L) of Education Code section 33315, a remedy to all affected pupils, parents, and guardians.  With respect to a pupil fees complaint, corrective actions shall include, if they are warranted, including, with respect to a pupil fee complaint, a remedy that comports with Education Code section 49013(d) and section 4600(ut).
	(64) notice of the complainant's right to appeal the LEA Investigation Report Decision to the CDE, except when the LEA has used its local uniform complaint procedures to address a complaint not listed in section 4610(b); and
	(75) procedures to be followed for initiating an appeal to the CDE.
	(f) Nothing in this chapter shall prohibit the parties from utilizing alternative methods to resolve the allegations in the complaint, including, but not limited to, local mediation.
	(g) Nothing in this chapter shall prohibit an LEA from resolving complaints prior to the formal filing of a written complaint.
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 221.1, and 33031 and 33315, Education Code; and Section 11138, Government Code. Reference: Sections 200, 220 and 49013, Education Code; Sections 11135, 11136 and 11138, Government Code; and 34 C.F.R. Section 106.8.

Article. 4.5. Appeal of LEA Investigation Report Decision
§ 4632. Appeal of LEA Investigation Report Decision - Grounds.
	(a) Except for complaints under sections 4681 and 4682 regarding instructional materials and teacher vacancies or misassignments, aA complainant may appeal an LEA Investigation ReportDecision to the CDE by filing a written appeal within 3015 days of receiving the date of the LEA Investigation ReportDecision.
	(b) In order to request an appeal, Tthe complainant mustshall specify and explain  the basis for the appeal, including whether: of the Decision and whether the facts are incorrect and/or the law is misapplied.
	(1) The LEA failed to follow its complaint procedures, and/or
	(2) Relative to the allegations of the complaint, the LEA Investigation Report lacks material findings of fact necessary to reach a conclusion of law, and/or
	(3) The material findings of fact in the LEA Investigation Report are not supported by substantial evidence, and/or
	(4) The legal conclusion in the LEA Investigation Report is inconsistent with the law, and/or
	(5) In a case in which the LEA found noncompliance, the corrective actions fail to  provide a proper remedy.
	(c) The appeal shall be accompanied by:
	(1) a copy of the locally filed complaint; and
	(2) a copy of the LEA Investigation ReportDecision.
	(d) Appeals that do not comply with subsections (a) through (c) will not be processed. The CDE will notify the appellant of the deficiencies.
	(de) If the CDE determines the appeal raises issues not contained in the local complaint, the CDE will refer those new issues back to the LEA for resolution as a new complaint under section 4630 or 4631.
	(ef) If the CDE determines that the LEA Investigation ReportDecision failed to address an issueallegation raised by the complaint and subject to the UCP process, the CDE shall notify the LEA of such failure and direct the LEA to investigate and address such allegation(s) in accordance with this Chapter. The LEA must provide both the CDE and the complainant with an amended investigation report within 20 days of such notification.  The amended report must also inform the complainant of the right to separately appeal, in accordance with this section, those portions of the amended investigation report not addressed in the original report. refer the matter to the LEA to make the necessary findings and conclusions on any issue not addressed. The LEA will address the issue within 20 days from the date of the referral.
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 200, 221.1, and 33031 and 33315, Education Code; and Section 11138, Government Code. Reference: Sections 11135, 11136 and 11138, Government Code; 34 C.F.R. Sections 106.8 and 299.10(a)(2).

§ 4633. Appeal of LEA Investigation ReportDecision.
	(a) If the LEA Investigation ReportDecision is appealed and meets the requirements of section 4632, subdivisions (a) through (c), the CDE shall notify the LEA of the appeal. Upon notification by the CDE that the LEA Investigation ReportDecision has been appealed, the LEA shall forward the following to the CDE within 10 days of the date of notification: 
	(1) A copy of the original complaint;
	(2) A copy of the LEA Investigation ReportDecision;
	(3) A summary of the nature and extent of the investigation conducted by the LEA, if not covered in the Decision;
	(43) A copy of the investigation file, including but not limited to, all notes, interviews and documents submitted by the parties or gathered by the investigator;
	(54) A report of any action taken to resolve the complaint;
	(65) A copy of the LEA complaint procedures; and
	(76) Such other relevant information as the CDE may request.
An LEA’s failure to provide a timely and complete response may result in the CDE ruling on the appeal without considering information from the LEA.
	(b) In deciding an appeal, Tthe CDE shall not consider any information not previously receive evidence from the parties that could have been presented to the LEA investigator during the investigation, unless requested by the CDE. Any confidential information or pupil information in the investigative file shall remain confidential and shall not be disclosed by the CDE, to the extent permitted by law.
	(c) The CDE may contact the parties for further information, if necessary.
	(d) The CDE shall review the investigation file, the summary of the nature and extent of the investigation conducted by the LEA, the complaint procedures, documents and any other evidence received from the LEA and determine whether substantial evidence exists:
	(1) That tThe LEA followed its complaint procedures; and
	(2) The LEA Investigation Report includes material findings of fact necessary to reach a conclusion of law on the subject of the appeal;
	(23) That tThe relevant material findings of fact in the LEA Investigation Report which are the subject of the appeal are supported by the substantial evidence.;
	(4) The LEA Investigation Report includes a legal conclusion(s) of law that is consistent with the law; and
	(5) In a case in which the LEA found noncompliance, the corrective actions provide a proper remedy.
	(e) The CDE shall review the conclusions of law which are the subject of the appeal and determine whether they are correct.
	(f) If the CDE determines that the Decision is deficient because it lacks findings of fact and conclusions of law regarding the subject of the appeal, the CDE may return the Decision to the LEA in order to correct the deficiencies within 20 days of the return.
	(ge) If the CDE finds determines that the LEA Investigation Report Decision meets the criteria in subsection (d) above, is supported by substantial evidence, and that the legal conclusions are not contrary to law, the appeal shall be denied.
	(f) If the CDE determines that the LEA Investigation Report is deficient because it does not meet the criteria in subsection (d) above, the CDE may:
	(1) Notify the LEA of such deficiencies and return the LEA Investigation Report to the LEA in order to provide both the CDE and the complainant with an amended Investigation Report within 20 days of such notification, which the amended report must inform the complainant of the right to appeal in accordance with section 4632.; or 
	(h) If the CDE finds the grounds for the appeal have merit:
	(1) The CDE may, if there is a lack of substantial evidence or a procedural defect in the investigation, remand the investigation to the LEA for further investigation of the allegations which are the subject of the appeal; or
	(2) The CDE may iIssue a dDecision based on the evidence in the investigation file received from the LEA; or
	(3) If the CDE determines that it is in the best interest of the parties, cConduct a further investigation of the allegations which are the basis for the appeal and issue a dDecision following further investigation.
(ig) If the CDE finds merit in the appeal, the CDE’s An appeal decision issued by the CDE on appeal shall include contain the following:
	(1) A finding that the LEA complied or did not comply with its complaint procedures;
	(2) The CDE’s determination as to the LEA’s findings of fact and conclusions of law regarding the issue on appeal; and
	(3) Where a determination is made that the LEA failed to comply with the applicable state or federal law or regulation, remedial orders and/or required actions to address the violation(s), including, Corrective actions as appropriate and including a remedy to the affected pupil, or in the case of complaints related to subsections (a)(1)(I), (a)(1)(J), (a)(1)(K), and (a)(1)(L) of Education Code section 33315, a remedy to all affected pupils, parents, and guardians. wWith respect to a pupil fee complaint, corrective actions shall include a remedy that specifies the LEA's obligation to comply comports with Education Code section 49013(d) and section 4600(ut).
	(jh) The CDE must issue a written dDecision regarding an appeal to the complainant of a pupil fee complaint and provide a copy of the written decision to the appellant within 60 days of the CDE's receipt of the appeal, unless extended by written agreement with the complainant, or the CDE documents exceptional circumstances and informs the complainant, or the matter has been resolved at the local level or judicially decided.
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 221.1, and 33031 and 33315, Education Code; and Section 11138, Government Code. Reference: Sections 200, 220 and 49013, Education Code; Sections 11135, 11136 and 11138, Government Code; 34 C.F.R. Sections 106.8 and 299.10(a)(2).

§ 4635. Reconsideration of the CDE’s Appeal Decision.
(a) Within 30 days of the date of the CDE’s appeal Decision pursuant to section 4633(f)(2) or (3), either party may request reconsideration by the Superintendent or his or her designee. The request for reconsideration shall specify and explain the reason(s) for contesting the findings of fact, conclusions of law, or corrective actions in the appeal Decision.
(b) In evaluating or deciding on a request for reconsideration, the Superintendent will not consider any information not previously submitted to the CDE by a party during the appeal unless such information was unknown to the party at the time of the appeal and, with due diligence, could not have become known to the party.
(c) Within 60 days of the receipt of the request for reconsideration, the Superintendent or his or her designee shall respond in writing to the parties. Such response may include a denial of the request for reconsideration, or modifications to the CDE appeal Decision necessary to ensure factual and legal accuracy. Pending the Superintendent's response to a request for reconsideration, the CDE appeal Decision remains in effect and enforceable, unless stayed by a court.
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 221.1, 33031, and 33315, Education Code; and Section 11138, Government Code. Reference: Section 33315, Education Code.

Article 5. State Complaint Procedures
§ 4640. Filing a State Complaint That Has Not First Been Filed at the Local Educational Agency (LEA); Time Lines, Notice, Appeal Rights.
Referral to the LEA for Local Resolution.
	(a) If a complaint is erroneously filed with the CDE without first being filed with and investigated by the LEA, the CDE shall immediately forward the complaint to the LEA for processing in accordance with article 4 of this chapter, unless extraordinary circumstances exist necessitating direct state intervention as described at section 4650.
	(b) A letter shall be sent by first class mail to The CDE will notify the complainant(s) notifying him, her, or them in writing that:
	(1) The CDE does not have jurisdiction, at this time, over the complaint and that the complaint should have been filed with the LEA in the first instance;
	(2) That the complaint has been transferred to the local educational agencyLEA requesting the local educational agencyLEA to process and investigate the allegation in the complaint; and
	(3) That the complainant may file an appeal to the CDE following the issuance of the LEA Investigation ReportDecision, if he or she believes as a matter of fact or law the LEA Investigation ReportDecision is incorrect.
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 221.1, and 33031 and 33315, Education Code; and Section 11138, Government Code. Reference: Sections 200 and 220, Education Code; Sections 11135, 11136, and 11138, Government Code; and 34 C.F.R. Sections 106.8 and 299.10(a)(2).

Article 6. Direct State Intervention
§ 4650. Basis of Direct State Intervention.
	(a) Except for complaints under sections 4680, 4681, 4682 and 4683 regarding instructional materials, teacher vacancies or misassignments, and condition of a facility, tThe CDE shall may at its discretion directly intervene without waiting for an LEA investigation if one or more of the following situations exist:
	(1) The complaint includes an allegation, and the CDE verifies, that an LEA failed to comply with the complaint procedures required by this Chapter and its local rules and regulations, including, but not limited to, the failure or refusal of the LEA to cooperate with the investigation;
	(2) The complaint relates to an agency that is not an LEA funded through the Child Development or Child Nutrition Programs;
	(32) The complainant requests anonymity because he or she would be in danger of retaliation and would suffer immediate and irreparable harm if he or she filed a complaint with the LEA (except for complaints identified in section 4630(f), which may be filed anonymously at the local level regarding pupil fees, which may be filed anonymously with the principal of a public school);
	(43) The complainant alleges that the LEA failed or refused to implement the final LEA Investigation ReportDecision resulting from its local investigation or local mediation agreement or a CDE appeal Decision;
	(54) The complainant alleges and the CDE verifies that through no fault of the complainant, no action has been taken by the LEA within 60 calendar days of the date the complaint was filed. Prior to direct intervention, the CDE shall attempt to work with the LEA to allow it to complete the investigation and issue an LEA Investigation ReportDecision.; or 
	(65) The complainant alleges and the CDE verifies that he or she would suffer immediate and irreparable harm as a result of an application of a district-wide policy that is in conflict with state or federal law covered by this Cchapter, and that filing a complaint with the LEA would be futile.
	(7) For complaints relating to special education, any one of the following shall be a condition for direct state intervention:
	(A) The complainant alleges that a public agency, other than an LEA, as specified in Government Code section 7570 et seq., fails or refuses to comply with an applicable law or regulation relating to the provision of free appropriate public education to individuals with disabilities;
	(B) The complainant alleges that the LEA or public agency fails or refuses to comply with the due process procedures established pursuant to federal and state law and regulation; or has failed or refused to implement a due process hearing order;
	(C) The complainant alleges facts that indicate that the child or group of children may be in immediate physical danger or that the health, safety or welfare of a child or group of children is threatened.
	(D) The complainant alleges that an individual with a disability is not receiving the special education or related services specified in his or her individualized educational program (IEP).
	(E) The complaint involves a violation of federal law governing special education, 20 U.S.C. section 1400 et seq., or its implementing regulations.
	(b) The CDE shall directly intervene without waiting for LEA investigation if the complaint alleges that an agency that is not an LEA violated laws relating to a Child Care and Development program; 
	(bc) The complaint shall identify the basis, as described in subdivision (a) or subdivision (b) above, for filing the complaint directly to the CDE. The complainant must present the CDE with clear and verifiable evidence that supports the basis for the direct filing, except as in subdivision (a)(7). 
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 221.1, and 33031 and 33315, Education Code; and Section 11138, Government Code. Reference: Sections 200, 220 and 49013, Education Code; Sections 11135, 11136 and 11138, Government Code; and 34 C.F.R. Sections 106.8 and 299.10(a)(2).

§ 4651. Notification.
(a) When the Department receivesaccepts, a complaint requesting direct Sstate 
Intervention pursuant to section 4650, the Department shall determine whether the complaint meets one or more of the criterion specified in section 4650 for direct Sstate intervention and shall it will immediately notify the complainant by first class mail in writing of the determination. to accept the complaint without a local educational agency investigation and/or Decision. If the complaint is not accepted, it shall be referred to the local educational agencyLEA for local investigation, or referred to another agency pursuant to section 4611.
(b) When the CDE declines direct intervention for a complainant who requests 
anonymity pursuant to section 4650(a)(2), the CDE will not forward the complaint to the LEA pursuant to section 4640 without the complainant’s permission.
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 221.1, and 33031 and 33315, Education Code; and Section 11138, Government Code. Reference: Sections 200 and 220, Education Code; Sections 11135, 11136 and 11138, Government Code; 34 C.F.R. Sections106.8; and 34 CFR 299.10(a)(2).

Article 7. State Investigation Procedures
§ 4660. Department Resolution Procedures.
	(a) When the Department determines that direct State intervention is warranted pursuant to any provision of section 4650, the following procedures shall be used to resolve the issues of the complaint:
	(1) The Department shall consider alternative methods to resolve the allegations in the complaint.
	(2) If both parties request mediation, the Department shall offer to mediate the dispute which may lead to a state mediation agreement.
	(3) The Department shall conduct an investigation, including an on-site investigation if necessary, into the allegations in the complaint unless a settlement agreement has been reached between the parties that disposes of all the issues in the complaint.
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 200, 221.1 and 33031, Education Code; and Section 11138, Government Code. Reference: Sections 11135, 11136 and 11138, Government Code; 34 CFR 106.8; and 34 CFR 299.10(a)(2).

§ 4662. Investigation Timeline.
	(a) Each party in the dispute shall be sent written notification by the Department of the name(s) of the investigator(s) and the investigation date(s), if known. The notice shall explain the investigation process.
	(b) An investigation will be completed within 60 days after receiving a request for direct intervention or an appeal request, unless the parties have agreed to extend the time lines. The Department may grant extensions for the investigation if exceptional circumstances exist that constitute good cause with respect to the particular complaint, and provided that the complainant is informed of the extension and the reasons therefore and provided that the facts supporting the extension are documented and maintained in the complaint file.
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 221.1 and 33031, Education Code; and Section 11138, Government Code. Reference: Sections 200 and 220, Education Code; Sections 11135, 11136, and 11138, Government Code; 34 CFR 106.8; and 34 CFR 299.10(a)(2).

§ 4663. Department Investigation Procedures.
	(a) The investigator(s) shall request all documentation and other evidence regarding the allegations in the complaint.
	(b) The investigation shall include an opportunity for the complainant, or the complainant's representative, or both, to present the complaint(s) and evidence or information leading to evidence to support the allegations of non-compliance with state and federal laws and/or regulations.
	(c) Refusal by the complainant to provide the investigator with documents or other evidence related to the allegations in the complaint, or to otherwise fail or refuse to cooperate in the investigation or engage in any other obstruction of the investigation may result in the dismissal of the complaint because of a lack of evidence to support the allegations.
	(d) Refusal by the local educational agency to provide the investigator with access to records and/or other information related to the allegation in the complaint, or to otherwise fail or refuse to cooperate in the investigation or engage in any other obstruction of the investigation may result in a finding based on evidence collected that a violation has occurred and may result in the imposition of a remedy in favor of the complainant.
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 221.1, and 33031, and 33315, Education Code; and Section 11138, Government Code. Reference: Sections 200 and 220, Education Code; Sections 11135, 11136 and 11138, Government Code; 34 C.F.R. Sections 76.1, and 106.8; and 34 CFR 299.10(a)(2).

§ 4664. Department Investigation Report.
	(a) In cases of direct state intervention, the CDE shall issue a Department An iInvestigation rReport shall be issued. The Department iInvestigation rReport shall include the following:
	(1) A summary of the allegations in the complaint;
	(2) A description of the general procedures of the investigation;
	(3) Citations of applicable law and regulations;
	(4) Department findings of facts;
	(5) Department conclusions;
	(6) LEA required Corrective actions for the LEA or other public agency as defined in section 3200, if applicable;
	(7) LEA recommended specific actions, if applicable;
	(87) Time line for corrective actions, if applicable; and
	(98) Notice that any party may request reconsideration of the Department's Investigation rReport from the Superintendent of Public Instruction within 3530 days of the receiptdate of the report.;
	(109) For those federal programs for which there is a governed by Part 76 of Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations, the parties shall be notified of the right to appeal to the United States Secretary of Education, the parties shall be notified of that right.
	(b) An investigation report shall be mailed to the parties within 60 days from the conclusion of the investigation. The CDE must issue a written Department Investigation Report to the complainant within 60 days of receipt of the complaint, unless the parties have agreed to extend the time line or the CDE documents exceptional circumstances and informs the complainant, or the matter has been resolved at the local level or judicially decided. 
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 221.1, and 33031, and 33315, Education Code; and Section 11138, Government Code. Reference: Sections 200 and 221, Education Code; Sections 11135, 11136 and 11138, Government Code; 34 C.F.R. Sections 106.8; and 34 CFR 299.10(a)(2).

§ 4665. Discretionary Reconsideration of Department Investigation Report.
	(a) Within 3530 days of receipt the date of the Department iInvestigation rReport, either party may request reconsideration by the Superintendent or his or her designee. The request for reconsideration shall specify and explain why:designate the finding(s), conclusion(s), or corrective action(s) in the Department's report to be reconsidered and state the specific basis for reconsidering the designated finding(s), conclusion(s) or corrective action(s). The request for reconsideration shall also state whether the findings of fact are incorrect and/or the law is misapplied.
(1) Relative to the allegation(s), the Department Investigation Report lacks material 
findings of fact necessary to reach a conclusion of law on the subject of the complaint, and/or
(2) The material findings of fact in the Department Investigation Report are not 
supported by substantial evidence, and/or
(3) The legal conclusion in the Department Investigation Report is inconsistent with the law, and/or
(4) In a case in which the CDE found noncompliance, the corrective actions fail to provide a proper remedy.  
(b) In evaluating or deciding on a request for reconsideration, the CDE will not consider any information not previously submitted to the CDE by a party during the investigation unless such information was unknown to the party at time of the investigation and, with due diligence, could not have become known to the party.  This prohibition does not prohibit the CDE itself from seeking and obtaining information from any source necessary to issue an accurate Department Investigation Report
	(bc) Within 3560 days of the receipt of the request for reconsideration, the Superintendent or his or her designee mayshall respond in writing to the parties. modifying the specific finding(s), conclusion(s), or corrective action(s) for which reconsideration is requested, or denying the request for reconsideration. Such response may include a denial of the request for reconsideration, or modifications to the Department Investigation Report necessary to ensure factual and legal accuracy. Pending the Superintendent's response to a request for reconsideration, the Department Investigation rReport remains in effect and enforceable, unless stayed by a court.
	(c) Appeals by private agencies regarding Child Care Food Programs shall be made to the State Office of Administrative Hearings in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.
	(d) Appeals from investigations of complaints involving Child Development contractors, whether public or private, shall be made to the Superintendent of Public Instruction as provided in subsection (a) except as otherwise provided in division 19 of title 5 of the Code of California Regulations.
	(e) For those federal programs for which there is a governed by part 76 of title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations, the parties shall be notified of the right to appeal to the United States Secretary of Education, the parties shall be notified of that right.
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 200, 221.1, and 33031 and 33315, Education Code; and Section 11138, Government Code. Reference: Sections 200 and 220, Education Code; Sections 11135, 11136 and 11138, Government Code; 34 C.F.R. Sections 76.1 and 106.8.

Article 8. Enforcement – State Procedures to Effect Compliance
§ 4670. Enforcement.
	(a) Upon determination that a local agency violated the provisions of this chapter, the Department shall notify the local agency pursuant to sections 4633(g)(3) or 4664(b) that it must take corrective action to come into compliance. If corrective action is not taken, the Department may use any means authorized by law to effect compliance, including, but not limited to:
	(1) The withholding of all or part of the local agency's relevant state or federal fiscal support in accordance with state or federal statute or regulation;
	(2) Probationary eligibility for future state or federal support, conditional on compliance with specified conditions;
	(3) Proceeding in a court of competent jurisdiction for an appropriate order compelling compliance.
	(b) No decision to curtail state or federal funding to a local agency under this chapter shall be made until the Department has determined that compliance cannot be secured by other means.
	(c) If the Department determines that a Child Development Contractor's Agreement shall be terminated, the procedures set forth in sections 8257(db) or 8400 et seq. of the Education Code and the regulations promulgated pursuant thereto (chapter 19 of title 5, CCR, commencing with section 1790618118), shall be followed.
	(d) If the Department determines that a local educational agency has failed to comply with any provision of sections 49550 through 49554 of the Education Code, the Department shall certify such noncompliance to the Attorney General for investigation pursuant to section 49556 of the Education Code.
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 200, 221.1, and 33031 and 33315, Education Code; and Section 11138, Government Code. Reference: Section 49556, Education Code; Sections 11135, 11136 and 11138, Government Code; and 34 C.F.R. Sections 76.783 and 106.8.

Article 10. Complaints Regarding State Preschool Health and Safety Issues in LEAs Exempt from Licensing
§ 4690. Filing a Local Complaint; Procedures; Time Lines.
(a) Written complaints regarding California state preschool health and safety issues pursuant to section 1596.7925 of the Health and Safety Code, in LEAs that are exempt from licensing pursuant to subdivision (o) of section 1596.792 of the Health and Safety Code, shall be filed with the preschool program administrator or his or her designee.
(b) A complaint about problems beyond the authority of the preschool program administrator shall be forwarded in a timely manner, but not to exceed 10 working days to the appropriate LEA official for resolution.
	(c) A complaint may be filed anonymously. A complainant who identifies himself or herself is entitled to a response if he or she indicates that a response is requested. A complaint form shall include a space to mark to indicate whether a response is requested. If section 48985 of the Education Code is otherwise applicable, the response, if requested, and report shall be written in English and the primary language in which the complaint was filed. 
	(d) The complaint form required by Education Code section 8235.5 shall specify the location for filing a complaint. A complainant may add as much text to explain the complaint as he or she wishes.
	(e) All complaints and responses are public records.
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 8235.5, 33031 and 33315, Education Code.  Reference: Section 8235.5, Education Code.
 
§ 4691. Notice.
	(a) In order to identify appropriate subjects of a complaint, a notice shall be posted in each California state preschool program classroom in each school in the local educational agency notifying parents, guardians, pupils, and teachers of both of the following:
	(1) The health and safety requirements under title 5 of the California Code of Regulations that apply to California state preschool programs pursuant to section 1596.7925 of the Health and Safety Code.
	(2) The location at which to obtain a form to file a complaint. Posting a notice downloadable from the Internet website of the Department shall satisfy this requirement.
	(b) This notice is in addition to the notice required by section 4622.
NOTE:  Authority cited: Sections 8235.5, 33031 and 33315, Education Code.  Reference: Section 8235.5, Education Code.

§ 4692. Investigation and Resolution of Complaints.
(a) The preschool program administrator or the designee of the district 
superintendent, as applicable, shall make all reasonable efforts to investigate any problem within his or her authority. Investigations shall begin within 10 days of the receipt of the complaint. The preschool program administrator or designee of the district superintendent shall remedy a valid complaint within a reasonable time period, but not to exceed 30 working days from the date the complaint was received. 
(b) The preschool program administrator or designee of the district superintendent 
shall report to the complainant the resolution of the complaint within 45 working days of the initial filing. If the preschool program administrator makes this report, the preschool program administrator shall also report the same information in the same timeframe to the designee of the district superintendent.
(c) At the time the preschool program administrator or designee of the district 
superintendent provides a report of the resolution of the complaint to the complainant, he or she shall also provide a copy of the report to the preschool program’s assigned field consultant at the Department.
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 8235.5, 33031 and 33315, Education Code.  Reference: Section 8235.5, Education Code.

§ 4693. Responsibilities of Governing Board.
	(a) A complainant not satisfied with the resolution of the preschool program administrator or the designee of the district superintendent has the right to describe the complaint to the governing board or body or authorized designee, as applicable, of the LEA at a regularly scheduled hearing of the governing board or body or authorized designee, as applicable, of the LEA. 
	(b) An LEA shall report summarized data on the nature and resolution of all complaints on a quarterly basis to the county superintendent of schools and the governing board or body or authorized designee, as applicable, of the local educational agency. The summaries shall be publicly reported on a quarterly basis at a regularly scheduled meeting of the governing board or body or authorized designee, as applicable, of the LEA. The report shall include the number of complaints by general subject area with the number of resolved and unresolved complaints. The complaints and written responses shall be available as public records.
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 8235.5, 33031, 33315, and 35161, Education Code.  Reference: Section 8235.5, Education Code.

§ 4694. Appeal to Superintendent.
	(a) A complainant who is not satisfied with the resolution proffered by the preschool program administrator or the designee of the district superintendent has the right to file an appeal to the State Superintendent within 30 days of the date of the written report.
	(b) Complainant shall comply with the appeal requirements of section 4632. 
	(c) The State Superintendent or his or her designee shall comply with the requirements of section 4633.
	(d) Failure to file a local appeal pursuant to section 4693 does not preclude the filing of a state appeal pursuant to this section.
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 8235.5, 33031 and 33315, Education Code.  Reference: Section 8235.5, Education Code.

Chapter 15. Child Nutrition Programs
Subchapter 1. Food Sales, Food Service, and Nutrition Education
Article 7. Complaint Procedures
§ 15580. Scope.
	(a)	This article applies to complaints alleging that a local educational agency (LEA) or a program operator that is not an LEA has violated a law or regulation relating to Child Nutrition Programs (CNP) established pursuant to Education Code sections 49490 through 49570 and the National School Lunch Program, title 42 of the United States Code (42 U.S.C.) section 1751 et seq.; Summer Food Service Program, 42 U.S.C. 1761; Child and Adult Care Food Program, 42 U.S.C. 1766; Special Milk Program, 42 U.S.C. 1772; School Breakfast Program, 42 U.S.C. 1773; and Food Distribution Program, 42 U.S.C. 1791.
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 33315 and 49556, Education Code; and 7 C.F.R. Sections 210.19(a)(4), 215.1(a), 220.13(c), 225.11(b), 226.6(n), and 250.15(d). Reference: Sections 33315 and 49556, Education Code; and 7 C.F.R. Sections 210.19(a)(4), 215.1(a), 220.13(c), 225.11(b), 226.6(n), and 250.15(d).
 
§ 15581. Process for Filing a Complaint.
	(a)	An organization or individual may file a complaint described in section 15580 by phone, email, or letter.
	(b)	A complaint filed on behalf of an individual student may only be filed by the student or his or her duly authorized representative.
	(c)	The complaint must be submitted within one year from the date the alleged violation occurred.
	(d)	The complaint must include: 
	(1) A statement that an LEA or a program operator that is not an LEA has violated a law or regulation relating to the CNP;
	(2) The facts on which the statement is based;
	(3) The name of the LEA or program operator that is not an LEA and/or specific site the allegations are made against;
	(4) The contact information of the complainant; and
	(5) If alleging violations regarding a specific child, the name of the student.
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 33315 and 49556, Education Code; and 7 C.F.R. Sections 210.19(a)(4), 215.1(a), 220.13(c), 225.11(b), 226.6(n), and 250.15(d).  Reference: Sections 33315 and 49556, Education Code; and 7 C.F.R. Sections 210.19(a)(4), 215.1(a), 220.13(c), 225.11(b), 226.6(n), and 250.15(d);.
 
§ 15582. Referring Complaint Issues to Other Agencies. 
Allegations of discrimination based on race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability will be referred to the U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) per the USDA Food and Nutrition Service (FNS) Instruction 113-1. 
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 33315 and 49556, Education Code; and 7 C.F.R. Sections 210.19(a)(4), 215.1(a), 220.13(c), 225.11(b), 226.6(n), and 250.15(d). Reference: Sections 33315 and 49556, Education Code; and 7 C.F.R. Sections 210.19(a)(4), 215.1(a), 220.13(c), 225.11(b), 226.6(n), and 250.15(d). 

§ 15583. LEA Investigation Procedures; Appeal.
(a) The LEA shall investigate and prepare a written report in compliance with the 
requirements of section 4631.
(b) The complainant may appeal the LEA’s written report to the CDE as provided in 
section 4632.
(c) Upon receipt of an appeal, the CDE shall comply with the requirements of 
section 4633.
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 33315 and 49556, Education Code; and 7 C.F.R. Sections 210.19(a)(4), 215.1(a), 220.13(c), 225.11(b), 226.6(n), and 250.15(d). Reference: Sections 33315 and 49556, Education Code; and 7 C.F.R. Sections 210.19(a)(4), 215.1(a), 220.13(c), 225.11(b), 226.6(n), and 250.15(d). 
[bookmark: _GoBack]
§ 15584. Department Investigation Procedures; Appeal.
(a) The Department shall directly intervene in complaints involving the following:
(1) Meal counting and claiming;
(2) Reimbursable meals;
(3) Eligibility of child or adult; or
(4) Use of cafeteria funds and allowable expenses. 	
(b) The Department shall directly intervene in complaints against a program 
operator that is not an LEA.
(c) The Department shall directly intervene in complaints pursuant to Education 
Code section 49556 alleging a violation of Education Code sections 49550 through 49564.5.
	(d) The following apply to the Department investigation:
	(1) The investigation shall include an opportunity for the complainant to present information or evidence to support the allegation(s).
	(2) The investigation shall include an opportunity for the LEA or program operator that is not an LEA to respond to the complaint.
	(3) The investigation may include an on-site investigation, which may be unannounced, if deemed necessary.
	(4) The CDE shall issue a written report within 90 days of receipt of the complaint, unless the CDE documents exceptional circumstances and informs the complainant.  The report shall include a summary of the allegations in the complaint; a description of the general procedures of the investigation; citations of applicable law and regulations; findings of fact based on evidence gathered; conclusions of law; and, If merit is found in the complaint, corrective actions and a time line for completion.
	(5) If the CDE disallows reimbursement, the CDE shall inform the LEA or program operator that is not an LEA of the right to appeal to the Office of Administrative Hearings in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 33315 and 49556, Education Code; and 7 C.F.R. Sections 210.18(p), 210.19(a)(4), 215.1(a), 220.13(c), 225.11(b), 226.6(k), 226.6(n), and 250.15(d). Reference: Sections 33315 and 49556, Education Code; and 7 C.F.R. Sections 210.19(a)(4), 215.1(a), 220.13(c), 225.11(b), 226.6(n), and 250.15(d)..
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